MAJOR H. J. WOODSIDE

The Great War Veterans' Association of Canada

Incorporated 1918



Constitution

By-Laws, Rules and Regulations

Effective from date of Incorporation October 9th, 1918

The Great War Veterans' Association of Canada

Incorporated 1918



Constitution

By-Laws, Rules and Regulations

Effective from date of Incorporation October 9th, 1918 AC901 A7 1918 no.0034

PXXX

ser tio

The Great War Veterans' Association of Canada

INCORPORATED 1918

Constitution, By-Laws, Rules and Regulations

Effective from date of Incorporation, October 9, 1918

ARTICLE I.

Aims and Objects of The Great War Veterans' Association of Canada

(a) To perpetuate the close and kindly ties of mutual service in the Great War, the recollections and association of that experience, and to maintain proper standards of dignity and honour between all returned soldiers.

(b) To preserve the memory and records of those who suffered and died for the nation. To see to the erection of monuments to their valor; the provision of suitable burial places; and the establishment of an annual memorial day.

by

gr

m

as

co

eit

or

sa

pr

ma

ot

su

ula

rig

As

her

of

ini Co

pre

- (c) To ensure that proper provision is made for the due care of the sick, wounded and needy among those who have served; including reasonable pensions, employment for such as are capable, soldiers' homes, medical care and equitable provision for dependent families of enlisted men.
- (d) To constantly inculcate loyalty to Canada and the Empire and unstinted service in their interests.
- (e) To guard carefully the good name, interests and the standing of our Comrades still overseas, and to which they should be entitled upon their return.
- (f) To impress upon its members, that they are to continue in their service to Canada as citizens, the same spirit of sacrifice and loyalty which they have shown to Canada and the Empire as soldiers, and to remain as members of the Association, non-sectarian and non-partisan.
- (g) To establish, maintain and operate clubs, clubrooms, hospitals, employment and information bureaus, industrial and other schools and institutions, libraries and establishments for the benefit, promotion and advancement generally of the interests of soldiers, and to furnish, stock and equip the same in such manner as the Association may determine.
- (h) To establish, organize and regulate Provincial and Local bodies or Commands and Branches in convenient centres throughout Canada.

(i) To raise funds for all purposes of the Association by fees from members, by obtaining public and private grants, and by various forms of amusement, entertainment or instruction, and otherwise as the Association may determine.

(j) To promote recruiting and enlistment, and to assist forces on active service by operating hospitals, convalescent homes, canteens and other like institutions,

either within or without Canada.

(k) To do all such other lawful acts and things relative or incidental to the said objects as may be found neces-

sarv or expedient.

(1) To take, hold and acquire any real or personal property to be held, if desired, by any Provincial Command or by a Local Branch in the name of trustees or others, upon such terms and conditions and subject to such rights and liabilities as are hereinafter more particularly set forth.

(m) To acquire, take over and assume the property, rights, assets and liabilities of the Great War Veterans' Association of Canada, an unincorporated Association heretofore, having its chief place of business at the City

of Ottawa, in the Province of Ontario.

ARTICLE II.

Organization

SEC. 1.—The Organization shall consist of the Dominion Command, and subordinate to it, the Provincial Commands and Local Branches.

Dominion Command

SEC. 2.—The Dominion Command shall be the supreme legislative and directing body of the Association.

SEC. 3.—The powers of the Dominion Command shall be exercised in the first place by the Dominion Convention, which shall meet annually at a time and place settled by vote of the next previous meeting.

SEC. 4.—In the recess of the Convention the powers of the Dominion Command shall be exercised by the Dominion Executive, which shall consist of the Dominion officers elected by the annual Convention, to wit:—the President and First and Second Vice-Presidents, and one representative from every Province.

SEC. 5.—Otherwise than by way of recommendation, privately communicated to its immediately superior Command, no other body than the Dominion Command shall deal with matters of national import.

Provincial Command

SEC. 6.—There shall be a Provincial Command in each Province. Provided, however; that such Command shall be formed upon request to the Dominion Command of a majority of the branches in a Province.

SEC. 7.—The powers of the Provincial Command shall be exercised in the first place by the Provincial Convention, which shall meet annually at a time and place settled by vote of the next previous meeting.

SEC. 8.—In the recess of the Provincial Convention the powers of the Provincial Command shall be exercised by the Provincial Executive, which shall consist of the Provincial officers elected by the Provincial annual Convention, and such other members as the Provincial Command shall determine.

ma pri otl ma

Pro exis

Exe Loc be peti Arti Pari of a puri of si

of the ship furth Asso Loca and

SE date or in SEC. 9.—In cases where there is a Provincial Command, then otherwise than by way of recommendation privately communicated to a Provincial Command, none other than a Provincial Command shall deal with matters of Provincial import.

SEC. 10.—All Local Branches shall be members of the Provincial Command, where such Provincial Command exists, before receiving a charter from the Dominion Command.

Local Branches

SEC. 11.—The Dominion Command through its Executive shall form and charter throughout Canada Local Branches whose powers, duties and officers shall be as hereinafter determined; provided that on the petition of ten persons entitled to membership under Article 3, and residing in any City, Town, Village, Parish, Municipality, or any other Territorial Division of any Province or Territory of Canada for Municipal purposes, the Dominion Executive may form a branch of such members as may desire to join in that district.

SEC. 12.—All persons in any locality, who at the date of the Letters Patent fulfil the requirements of membership as hereinafter set forth in Article 3, shall without further requirements be considered as members of the Association, and shall be entitled to meet and form a Local Branch conforming in all respects to these Rules and Regulations.

SEC. 13.—Wherever any Local Association is at the date of the Letters Patent in existence, whether voluntary or incorporated, its members shall *ipso facto* become

members of the Association. Provided, that as soon as possible after said date its constitution shall be re-organized, if necessary, so as to conform in all respects to the requirements of these Rules and Regulations.

Sec. 14.—The directing body of each Local Branch shall be known as the Executive, and shall consist of such officers and members as the Branch shall deem fit.

ARTICLE III

Membership, Application, Fees, Initiation and Expulsion

Membership.

Sec. 15.—Membership in the Association shall be limited as follows:-

Any person of good character who has seen active service in the Great War of 1914, etc., with the forces of the allied armies on one of the belligerent fronts, or in England, or, in the opinion of the branch of which he purposes to become a member, has seen equivalent service with the forces of the allied navies, and who is still in the service or has received an honourable discharge therefrom, shall be eligible for active membership.

Provided, however, in the case of a person who has seen active service in England and has failed to reach a belligerent front, he shall first show to the satisfaction of the branch of which he purposes to become a member, that such failure to reach a belligerent front was through no fault of his own.

8

gi re ar th so if m th Lo

res

ves tio nes inv Bra Con bee not Bra

mer bod. such

SI each And further provided, that nothing in this section shall be taken to affect in any wise the status of any member, active or associate, of the Association on the date of the coming into effect of these Letters Patent.

Application.

Sec. 16.—Application for membership shall be in writing upon a form provided for that purpose, and shall give in detail the applicant's name, age, birthplace, residence, occupation, address where employed, date and rank on enlistment, his rank at the time of discharge. the unit or units to which he belonged, the date and reason of his discharge, the length of time he served, and if wounded when and in what engagement, and in what manner and degree. The application, accompanied by the initiation fee, shall be sent to the Secretary of the Local Branch within whose jurisdiction the applicant resides. The Secretary will make a preliminary investigation, and report the application and all information in his possession to the Branch Executive at its next meeting. The Executive may either complete the investigation itself and report to the next meeting of the Branch, or hand the case over to an Investigating Committee of the Branch, when such a Committee has been formed. The applicant shall declare that he has not been, or tried to become a member of any other Branch of the Association.

SEC. 17.—Every applicant must be proposed by a member and his or her application recommended by the body charged with the duty of investigation; otherwise such application will be deemed rejected.

SEC. 18.—The Secretary of each Local Branch shall each month forward to the Provincial Command, or

where there is no Provincial Command to the Dominion Command, a list of all applications for membership showing the disposition made of them, and, in case of rejections, the grounds on which the applicants were rejected.

sa ac

un

tir

bu

to

of

of of

here

an

shal

afte.

follo

G.W

by-la

mem

nish

TH

SEC. 19.—Any person whose application has been rejected shall not be eligible for membership in any other branch without the consent of the Provincial Command, if within a Provincial jurisdiction, otherwise of the Dominion Command, given after careful investigation of his record.

Fees.

SEC. 20.—An initiation fee of two dollars (\$2.00) shall be charged by every Local Branch of the Association.

SEC. 21.—The amounts of, and periods for payment of, membership dues shall be fixed by By-laws of the Local Branch.

SEC. 22.—In the absence of any special by-law of the Branch, the dues shall become payable quarterly at the first meeting of the Branch in the months of March, June, September, and December in every year.

Suspension for Non-payment of Dues.

SEC. 23.—A member failing to pay his dues for a period of six months becomes *ipso facto* suspended. Notice shall be mailed by registered post by the Secretary of the Branch to the member at his last known address, informing him of his suspension, and that if he pays up his arrears within one month from the date of notice he

will be reinstated; but that if he fails to pay up within said month, his membership ceases, and any office held by him becomes vacant.

A suspended member failing to reinstate within the said period shall forfeit his membership and office according to notice.

SEC. 24.—An ex-member who has lost his membership under the foregoing provisions may be reinstated at any time by a two-thirds vote of any meeting of the Branch, but his reinstatement by such vote will not restore him to any office which he may have forfeited.

SEC. 25.—In case the member in default is a member of the Dominion, or a Provincial Executive, a duplicate of the foregoing notice shall be mailed by the Secretary of the Branch to the Secretary of said Executive.

Obligation and Initiation

SEC. 26.—In the absence of any ritual that may be hereafter adopted by the Dominion Convention, after an applicant's application has been duly accepted, he shall be admitted to membership in the Association after giving a written undertaking to abide by the constitution and by-laws of the Association in the form following:—

"I do hereby agree to become a member of The G.W.V.A., and to abide by the spirit of its constitution, by-laws and regulations."

The presiding officer shall then give to each man his membership card and badge, and at the same time furnish him with a copy of the constitution. For a good reason, the initiation of a member may be carried out by the Executive in the above manner, but in each case full reason therefor shall be written upon the application and read out at the next general meeting.

Expulsion of Members for Cause

SEC. 27.—Any member may be expelled from the Association for breach of his obligation, or of the constitution, or for disloyal utterances, or acts, or for profane or disorderly conduct in a meeting of any body of the Association, or for maliciously making a false charge against a member, or for conduct unworthy of a member.

Charge in Writing.

SEC. 28.—Any charge under the foregoing Section 27 against a member must be made in writing and signed by the accuser, and lodged with the Secretary of the Branch or Command where the accusation is made.

Trial Committee.

SEC. 29.—Upon receipt of the charge, the presiding officer of the Branch or Command shall appoint a trial committee of three members (with one or more waiting members) to try the case.

Di

De

Ta

tio

fix

sha

Bra

cale

Pro

levi

Procedure.

SEC. 30.—The trial committee shall take all necessary steps to ensure a fair trial of the case, including notification of the accused, and shall decide on the evidence submitted.

Report of Verdict to Branch.

SEC. 31.—The trial committee shall report its verdict to the Branch or Command for confirmation or rejection, a two-thirds vote of the members present being necessary to confirm the expulsion or suspension of a member.

Appeal

SEC. 32.—An appeal will lie, after confirmation of a verdict, to the executive of the next higher body; said appeal to be made by registered letter addressed to the proper office within ten days of said confirmation.

SEC. 33.—The conviction of any member by a competent court of criminal jurisdiction in Canada, or in the country where the member's Local Branch is situate, for any offence deemed to come within the purview of the foregoing Section 27 may be accepted by the Local Branch as conclusive evidence of the commission of such offence without the formality of a trial committee.

ARTICLE IV.

Finance

Dominion Per Capita Tax.

SEC. 34.—For the support and maintenance of the Dominion Command there shall be levied a Per Capita Tax on each and every member of the whole Association throughout Canada, the amount of which shall be fixed annually by the Dominion Convention. This tax shall be paid out of the general fund of every Local Branch and remitted in quarterly payments directly to the office of the Dominion Command, and shall be calculated on the number of members in the Branch not more than three months in arrears.

Provincial Per Capita Tax.

SEC. 35.—For the support and maintenance of the Provincial Command (when existent) there shall be levied a Per Capita Tax on each and every member

of the whole Provincial body, the amount of which shall be fixed annually by the Provincial Convention. This tax shall be paid out of the general fund of every Local Branch in the Province and remitted in quarterly payments directly to the office of the Provincial Command and shall be calculated on the number of members in the Branch not more than three months in arrears.

ARTICLE V.

EXECUTIVES

Dominion Executive

SEC. 36.—The Dominion Executive shall consist of a President, first Vice-President, and Second Vice-President, who shall be elected at the Annual Dominion Convention by vote of the whole Convention, and of one representative from every Province which representative shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Convention by the vote only of the delegates from the Province that he is to represent.

SEC. 37.—The Dominion Executive shall have power to perform and carry to completion work entrusted to it by the Annual Convention, or these Rules and Regulations, to fill all vacancies arising during recess, to supply all omissions left undone by the Convention, and generally to enact Rules and Regulations governing the business of the Association not inconsistent with these Rules and Regulations or the expressed will of the Convention. Provided, such Rules and Regulations shall be faithfully reported to the next Convention, and shall cease to be operative after said Convention unless confirmed thereby.

SE Bran

Exec portialso may

an

me

an

Co

tiv

sai

suc

the

sha

of the

shal

shal

to re

char

and

Brar

any

Orga

S₁ Con SEC. 38.—No salary or remuneration shall be paid to any member of the Dominion Executive. And no such member shall, outside of his authorized expenses, receive any money for his services. No salaried officer of any Command or Branch shall sit on the Dominion Executive as a member thereof while drawing a salary from said Command or Branch.

SEC. 39.—Salaried Officers of the Dominion Command, such as the Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer shall be appointed by and be under the disciplinary control of the Dominion Executive. The Dominion Executive may suspend or dismiss any such salaried officer, and shall be responsible that any officer handling any funds of the Dominion Command is properly bonded. In the absence of a written agreement, a salaried officer shall be deemed to be hired from month to month, and shall be required to give one month's notice if he wishes to resign.

SEC. 40.—Subject to an appeal to the next Dominion Convention, the Dominion Executive may suspend the charter of any Provincial Command or Local Branch, and may suspend any officer of such Command or Branch from the exercise of his office, and may suspend any member of this Association.

Organizing Work.

SEC. 41.—The work of organizing new commands or Branches rests in the first place with the Dominion Executive, which may from time to time delegate any portion of this work to any subordinate command, and also resume the same, as to the Dominion Executive may seem in the interests of the Association.

Provincial Executive

SEC. 42.—A Provincial Executive shall consist of a President, First Vice-President and Second Vice-President, who shall be elected at the Provincial Annual Convention by vote of the whole Convention, and such other members as the Provincial Command may determine, who shall be elected at the Provincial Annual Convention by vote of the whole Convention.

SEC. 43.—A Provincial Executive shall have power to perform and carry to completion work entrusted to it by the Annual Provincial Convention, or these Rules and Regulations, to fill all vacancies arising during the recess and to supply all omissions left undone by the Provincial Annual Convention.

In

an

an

Cc

to

COI

the

me

one

me

Vot

ven

que

abo

Whe

any

(3

SEC. 44.—No salary or remuneration shall be paid to any member of a Provincial Executive; and no such member shall outside of his authorized expenses receive any money for his services.

SEC. 45.—Salaried Officers of a Provincial Command, such as the Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer, shall be appointed by, and be under the disciplinary control of the Provincial Executive. A Provincial Executive may suspend or dismiss any such salaried officer, and shall be responsible that any officer handling any funds of the Provincial Command is properly bonded. In the absence of a written agreement a salaried officer of the Provincial Command shall be deemed to be hired from month to month, and shall be required to give one month's notice if he wishes to resign.

SEC. 46.—Subject to an appeal to the next Provincial Convention and a further appeal to the Dominion

Executive, a Provincial Executive may suspend any officer of any Branch, subject to the Provincial jurisdiction, from the exercise of his office and may suspend any member of a Branch, subject to the Provincial jurisdiction.

ARTICLE VI.

CONVENTIONS

Dominion Convention

Interpretation.

SEC. 47.—In the following sections, the word members and membership shall be exclusive of associate members, and inclusive only of those returned to the Dominion Command as members for whom per capita tax is paid to the end of the quarter immediately preceding the convention.

(1) Each local branch shall be entitled to send to the convention, as representing its members, one delegate, and in addition one delegate for the next three hundred members above the first one hundred, and thereafter one delegate for each additional complete five hundred members.

Voting.

(2) Where no poll is demanded the vote of the convention shall be by yea and nay, or by a standing vote.

Where a poll is demanded each branch shall, on any question, have one vote for every member as defined above.

When more than one delegate voting for a branch.

(3) Where delegates from any branch disagree on any question being polled, each of such delegates shall

have the voting power of the number of delegates present from that branch, divided into the membership of that branch as above defined.

Several branches uniting on delegate.

(4) Where two or more branches voluntarily combine to send a single delegate, he shall carry credentials from each of the branches accrediting him and be entitled to cast the vote of each of such branches.

Executive.

(5) Irrespective of whether they have been re-elected as delegates, the Dominion Executive shall be fully qualified members of the convention until its close. Where no poll is demanded they shall vote in the same manner as above set forth. Where a poll is demanded they shall not vote unless delegates.

SEC. 48.—At each session of any convention, the following committees shall be elected, whose powers and duties shall terminate with the adjournment of the convention for the year:

1. Resolutions.

2. Ways and means.

3. Constitution and Law.

4. Procedure.

5. Committee on Appeals.

Committee on Resolutions.

SEC. 49.—To this committee shall be handed all resolutions read at the various sessions, for consideration and report, and for combination, amendment or consolidation. Should any resolutions be adversely reported on by the committee, the delegate who moved such resolution shall have the right to re-introduce it

to

pr

sta caj orc

am ciat

Con and

depo gate tion ches and

SE and and Com both the e venti to the convention, provided a majority of the delegates present are favourable.

Committee on Ways and Means.

Sec. 50.—This committee shall consider the financial standing of the convention and recommend the per capita tax for the following year, and also any extraordinary expenditure not provided for in the constitution.

Committee on Constitution and Law.

SEC. 51.—To this committee shall be handed all amendments to the constitution and laws of the Association for consideration, and report to the convention.

Committee on Procedure.

SEC. 52.—To decide on programme of the convention, and the priority of the resolutions.

SEC. 53.—The success of any Dominion Convention depends on an open-minded consideration by the delegates, of the views expressed on the floor of the convention, from all parts of Canada. Instructions by branches to delegates should not be in the form of hard and fixed resolutions precluding such consideration.

Provincial Conventions

SEC. 54.—In the following sections, the words members and membership shall be exclusive of associate members and inclusive only of those returned to the Provincial Command as members for whom per capita tax is paid, both to the Dominion and the Provincial Commands to the end of the quarter immediately preceding the Convention.

SEC. 55.—The number of delegates which each Local Branch shall be entitled to send to a Provincial Convention as representing its members, shall be decided by vote of the next previous meeting of such Provincial Convention.

SEC. 56.—Where no poll is demanded the vote of the Provincial Convention shall be by yea and nay, or by a standing vote. Where a poll is demanded, each Branch shall, on any question, have one vote for every member as defined above.

SEC. 57.—Where delegates from any branch disagree on any question being polled, each of such delegates shall have the voting power of the number of delegates present from that Branch, divided into the membership of that Branch as above defined.

SEC. 58.—Where two or more Branches voluntarily combine to send a single delegate, he shall carry credentials from each of the Branches accrediting him, and be entitled to cast the vote of each of such Branches.

SEC. 59.—Irrespective of whether they have been re-elected as delegates, the Provincial Executive shall be fully qualified members of the Convention until its close. Where no poll is demanded, they shall vote in the same manner as above set forth. Where a poll is demanded, they shall not vote unless delegates.

SEC. 60.—At each session of any Provincial Convention, the following Committees shall be elected, whose powers and duties shall terminate with the adjournment of the Convention for the year:—

a

b

C

- 1. Resolutions.
- 2. Ways and Means.
- 3. Procedure.
- 4. Committee on Appeals.

Committee on Resolutions.

SEC. 61.—To this committee shall be handed all resolutions read at the various sessions, for consideration and report, and for combination, amendment or consolidation. Should any resolutions be adversely reported on by the committee, the delegate who moved such resolution shall have the right to re-introduce it to the Convention, provided a majority of the delegates present are favourable.

Committee on Ways and Means.

SEC. 62.—This committee shall consider the financial standing of the Convention and recommend the Provincial per capita tax for the following year, and also any extraordinary expenditure not provided for in the constitution.

Committee on Procedure.

SEC. 63.—To decide on programme of the Convention, and the priority of the resolutions.

SEC. 64.—The success of any Provincial Convention depends on an open-minded consideration by the delegates of the views, expressed on the floor of the Convention, from all parts of the Province. Instructions by Branches to delegates should not be in the form of hard and fixed resolutions precluding such consideration.

ARTICLE VII.

Badges

SEC. 65.—The official badges of the Association shall be those in use by the Association on the date of the coming into effect of these Rules and Regulations.

SEC. 66.—The badge shall be worn only by members of the Association after they have been duly initiated into the Association, and shall be returned by any member who resigns or who is deemed to have resigned through non-payment of fees, or expulsion, upon the payment to that member of an amount equal to the price of such badge.

SEC. 67.—Each badge issued shall bear a number, and a record shall be kept by the Secretary of each Local Branch of all persons to whom the badge has been issued.

ARTICLE VIII.

Banking

SEC. 68.—All monies received by the Dominion, or by any Provincial Command, shall be forthwith deposited in such chartered bank, or banks, as the Executive of such Provincial or Dominion Command may determine.

Sec. 69.—All cheques issued by the Dominion or by a Provincial Command shall be signed by such officers or members as the Executive of the Dominion or any Provincial Command may determine.

SEC. 70.—The Banking practice of Local Branches shall be as hereinafter determined.

ARTICLE IX.

Amendments

SEC. 71.—These by-laws, rules and regulations may be amended at any annual meeting of the Dominion Convention by a majority vote of the whole Convention,

wit car of

til

re

th

ch or

 A_1

wl

pc by

ma

an

jec

tio

the

and

rac

provided that one day's notice has been given to the Convention of such amendment.

SEC. 72.—The Dominion Executive may from time to time repeal, amend and re-enact these by-laws, rules and regulations, and such change shall have force only until the next Annual Dominion Convention, and if the said changes are not then confirmed they shall from that time only cease to have any force. Provided always that the Annual Dominion Convention by a majority vote of the whole Convention, and on one day's notice of the proposals, may repeal, amend and re-enact any of these by-laws, rules and regulations.

ARTICLE X.

Constitution of Local Branches

Meetings

SEC. 73.—Each Local Branch shall have power to make by-laws, and regulations governing the calling and holding of all necessary meetings, but always subject to the provisions of these by-laws, rules and regulations.

SEC. 74.—The general meetings of a Branch, together with the Executive, shall be the organization for the carrying out of activities in connection with the welfare of returned men, and of the objects of the Association, and it shall be the organization for the social and comradeship life of each Branch.

SEC. 75.—At all meetings questions shall be decided by a majority of those present, the Chairman having the casting vote in addition, in case of a tie. SEC. 76.—At any meeting of the Branch, whether special or general, the quorum shall be as determined by by-law of the Local Branch.

SEC. 77.—Meetings are not intended for the parade of technical niceties of procedure, the presiding officer will rule promptly on all matters of procedure, and his decision will be final, subject to an appeal sustained by a two-third vote of the meeting.

SEC. 78.—The presiding officer of any meeting shall rule out of order all matters pertaining to political or religious discussion, or which do not refer to the well-being of our Association.

SEC. 79.—The Association rooms shall be open at such hours and upon such conditions as the House Committee of each Local Branch shall determine.

n

to

E

W

St

Si

W

C

Committees

SEC. 80.—There may be the following standing Committees: Finance, Employment, Investigation, Entertainment, Reception, Visiting, House, Publicity, Relief, Local, and By-laws; but each Local Branch may determine for itself the number and nature of the standing Committees necessary. The powers, rights and duties of these Committees shall be such as the Local Executive may determine, subject always to any other express provision in these Rules and Regulations.

SEC. 81.—The House Committee shall make regulations prescribing the conditions under which billiards, pool, whist and other games may be played in the rooms. And any member committing a breach of such regulations may be suspended or expelled.

SEC. 82.—Any cause of complaint that may arise is to be written in the "complaint book" and signed by the member complaining, or the complaint may be made by letter to the Secretary, over the signature of the member, and any such complaint must be laid by the Secretary before the Executive Committee at their next meeting.

SEC. 83.—All committees shall perform the duties assigned to them within the time specified, and report the result back to the Branch.

SEC. 84.—No member shall be excused from Committee work unless two-thirds of those present at the meeting agree thereto; but, no member shall be obliged to serve on more than two Committees at one time.

SEC. 85.—All committees shall be named by the presiding Officer, unless otherwise determined by the Branch.

SEC. 86.—The first named member on a Committee shall act as convenor to call the committee together, when they may elect their own Chairman.

SEC. 87.—A majority of any Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

SEC. 88.—All reports of Committees shall be presented in writing and signed by the members offering same.

Officers

SEC. 89.—The elective officers of a Local Branch shall be: President, First and Second Vice-Presidents, and where the offices of Secretary and Treasurer are not combined, a Treasurer shall also be elected.

SEC. 90.—Salaried Officers of a Branch, such as the Secretary, or, where the Offices of Secretary and Treasurer are combined, the Secretary-Treasurer, shall be appointed by and be under the disciplinary control of the Executive Committee of the Branch.

ai

VE

in

D1

bo

ev

m

an

re

 B_1

re

sh

en

mi

as

 D_1

acc

Br

of

ful

of

fur Ba

ecu

the

par

che

by

The Executive may suspend or dismiss any such salaried Officer, and shall be responsible that any Officer handling any funds of the Association is properly bonded. In the absence of a written agreement, a salaried Officer shall be deemed to be hired from month to month, and shall be required to give one month's notice if he wishes to resign.

Duties of the President.

SEC. 91.—The President shall preside at all meetings and enforce order and strict observance of these Bylaws, Rules and Regulations; countersign all cheques issued by the Treasurer, and all promissory notes, bills of exchange and other instruments involving the liability of the Branch or Command. He shall exercise a general supervision and control over the Officers and business of the Command or Branch, and shall call meetings of the Executive Committee, or of the Branch or Command when he considers same advisable. He shall transact such other business as may by custom appertain to his office; and he shall have the casting vote whenever there shall be an equal division on any question.

Duties of the Vice-Presidents.

SEC. 92. In the absence or disability of the President, all the rights and powers vested in the President shall for the time being be vested in the First Vice-President; and in the absence or disability of both the President

and First Vice-President, all the rights and powers vested in the President shall for the time being be vested in the Second Vice-President.

Duties of the Secretary.

SEC. 93.—The Secretary shall keep a record of the proceedings of all meetings, whether of the Branch or Command, or of the Executive Committee in special books kept for that purpose. He shall be required, at every business meeting, to have with him the proper minute and record books and all other necessary books and correspondence which he may have in his possession, relative to the business likely to be transacted at any meeting. He shall be the custodian of the Seal of the Branch or Command, and of all books and Official records belonging to the Branch or Command. He shall hold these and act at all times, and in all respects, entirely at the will and direction of the Executive Committee, and shall conform to all such rules and regulations as the Executive Committee may otherwise determine.

Duties of the Treasurer.

SEC. 94.—The Treasurer shall keep a just and true account of all monies received and paid out by the Branch or Command, and of all financial transactions of any and every kind whatsoever, including always a full and complete statement of the credits and liabilities of the Branch or Command. He shall deposit all funds of the Branch or Command in some chartered Bank of Canada to be determined upon by the Executive Committee, and the account shall be kept in the name of the Branch or Command. All monies payable by a Branch or Command shall be paid out by cheque only, signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the President or Vice-President of the Branch or

Command, and no cheque shall in any case be signed by any two such Officers in blank. The Treasurer shall keep his books at the Office of the Branch or Command, and they shall be open to the inspection of the Executive Committee at all times. When, and as often as the Executive Committee require, he shall set forth a detailed balance sheet, containing a summary of the property and liabilities of the Branch or Command, and of all its financial dealings, arranged in a proper and business like style, from time to time as required by the Committee.

Seal.

0

a

iı

0

a

rı

aı

R

D1

B

SEC. 95.—There shall be a seal for every Local Branch, and for every Command, which shall be according to such design as may be determined by the Dominion Executive, but which in each case shall bear on it the words, "The Great War Veterans' Association of CanadaBranch (or Command as the case may be)" and the blanks shall be filled in with the proper designation of the Branch or Command.

Executive of Local Branches.

SEC. 96.—The Executive Committee of a Local Branch shall be partly elected and partly appointed, and shall consist of the elective Officers of the Branch, and not less than three other members who shall be elected; provided, however, that at the first executive meeting after the annual meeting in each year, the Executive Committee shall appoint and elect one other member to the committee for each three members of the Committee elected by the annual meeting; and a majority of the Executive shall form a quorum.

SEC. 97.—The Executive Committee of a Local Branch shall consist of the elected Officers, and not fewer than three other members, a majority of whom shall constitute a quorum. Unless otherwise determined by by-law of the Local Branch, any vacancy on the Committee occurring during the year shall be filled by the Committee at a meeting of the Committee called for the purpose, of which three days' clear notice shall be given.

SEC. 98.—The Committee shall meet at least monthly, on a day to be fixed by the Committee, or at the call of the Chairman, for the passing of accounts, the transaction of current business, the examining and discussion of any suggestion made to them for the general welfare of the Association, and such other business as may be introduced.

SEC. 99:—The Committee shall appoint a Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer, and such other Officers, servants and agents as may be required for the proper working of the Local Branch. It shall have all the power of the Local Branch except the power to rescind or alter any rules, resolutions or by-laws adopted by the Local Branch, the power to expel members, save as otherwise provided by these rules, and the power to raise money by way of loan, or mortgage or debentures, or to sell any realty or assets belonging to the Association, in accordance with the provisions of these Rules and Regulations governing the ownership and disposal of property.

SEC. 100.—The Committee shall have power to levy an assessment on each and every member of the Local Branch to meet any extraordinary expenditure in any year, provided that such expenditure has been approved by two-thirds of those present at any meeting called for the purpose of considering the same, and further provided that such assessment is approved by two-thirds of those present at any meeting called for the purpose of considering the same. Any member making default in payment of such assessment, so ordered, shall be deprived of the use and privileges of the Association.

SEC. 101.—Should any member of the Committee be absent from four consecutive meetings of either the Committee or the Local Branch, without an excuse satisfactory to the other members, he shall cease to hold office, and his place shall be filled in the manner relating to vacancies provided by Section 97.

O

m

of

to

be

Se

ca

an Tl

be

off

Br

fer

acc

or

sig

and

me

the

que

SEC. 102.—The Officers and Executive Committee of a Local Branch shall, save as otherwise provided by these Rules and Regulations, be elected annually by a majority vote of those present at the annual general meeting of the Local Branch.

Order of Business

SEC. 103.—

(1) Call to order by Chairman (usual way).

(2) At word of Chairman all shall stand with bowed heads in silence for one minute in memory of, and out of respect for our fallen comrades, and those who are yet in the trenches.

(3) Roll call of officers.

(4) Minutes of last meeting and minutes of Executive Meetings.

(5) Applications for membership.

(6) Initiation.

(7) Unfinished business.

(8) Financial statement.

(9) Correspondence.

(10) Social.

(11) Reports of Committees.

(12) Notice of Motion.

(13) General business, welfare of the Association.

(14) Election of officers and committees.

(15) National Anthem "God Save The King" and one verse of "O Canada."

Provided, however, that the above order of business may be suspended at any meeting on a two-thirds vote of the members present favouring such suspension.

Transfers and Cards

Sec. 104.—Any member in good standing may apply to the Secretary of his Branch for transfer of his membership to any other branch he may indicate, and the Secretary is empowered to furnish him with a form of card (Form "A") which shall be signed by the Secretary and by the member himself in the Secretary's presence. The card shall indicate the amount of the unused membership dues of the member and shall also state any office which he may have held in that Branch. The Branch indicated on the transfer shall, after the transferring member's application for affiliation has been accepted by a majority of those present at a general or special meeting, receive such member after he has signed in the presence of the President or other Officials, and shall credit him with the amount of his unused membership dues, which amount shall be remitted by the Branch from which such member has transferred.

SEC. 105.—Any member in good standing may request the Secretary of his Branch to furnish him with

a travelling card (Form "B"), and the Secretary shall furnish the member with such Card, which shall be good until the date mentioned thereon, and shall entitle such member to club privileges in any branch of the Association.

Returns Required

SEC. 106.—Each Local Branch shall furnish every six months to the Dominion, and to its respective Provincial Secretary, a complete list of all members in good standing, on a form provided for that purpose by the Dominion, and by the Provincial Commands respectively; and shall also make such returns as are required by Sections 18, 25, 34 and 35 of these Rules and Regulations, and shall at all times supply such further information relating to the affairs of the Branch as may from time to time be required by the Dominion, or by a Provincial Executive.

a

R

or

ce

ing

Co

Procedure

SEC: 107.—At the appointed hour the President shall take the chair and call the meeting to order, and preside during the meeting.

SEC. 108.—In case the President is absent or disqualified, the First Vice-President shall act in his stead, and in the absence of both the President and First Vice-President, the Second Vice-President shall take the chair and preside. In the absence or disability of the President and both Vice-Presidents, the Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer shall call the meeting to order, and a temporary chairman shall be elected.

SEC. 109.—The presiding officer at any meeting shall enforce order and strict observance of these By-laws,

Rules and Regulations, and shall have the casting vote whenever there shall be an equal division an any question. He shall have the right to decide all questions of order, subject to an appeal to the meeting sustained by a two-thirds vote of those present.

SEC. 110.—The presiding officer shall, when debate has ceased on any question, put the same to a vote, giving the words of the motion or resolution clearly, so that no member may misunderstand the question on which he is about to vote.

SEC. 111.—A member wishing to introduce a motion, or to speak, shall arise and address the presiding officer, and shall wait until he is recognized before speaking.

SEC. 112.—Members are not to hold private committee meetings, or separate conversation, or to talk of anything impertinently or in an unseemly manner, or which is not of general interest to the other members present. No member shall interrupt the presiding officer, or a Comrade who is speaking with the permission of the Chair. No member shall use any unbecoming language upon any pretence whatsoever.

SEC. 113.—In matters not provided for in these Rules and Regulations, all meetings shall be conducted on parliamentary lines, and the rules of procedure contained in "Robert's Manual of Parliamentary Procedure, or Rules of Order" shall govern.

ARTICLE XI.

Auditors—Their Appointment and Remuneration

SEC. 114.—Within one month before the annual meeting of a Local Branch, and in the case of the Dominion Command, or of a Provincial Command, within one

month before the annual convention, the accounts of any such body shall be examined by a Board in each case of auditors who shall be elected annually for a Local Branch at its annual general meeting, and for the Dominion or for a Provincial Command, at their respective annual conventions, when in each case also their remuneration shall be determined.

a

r

a

D

SI

В

as

m

ex

lia

ma de

Ne

Cc

suc

tio Co

the

mee

tha

ove

Members of the Association may be appointed to such Boards provided that no director or officer shall be eligible. Their reports shall be signed and placed in the hands of the Secretary of the Local Branch, or of the Dominion or Provincial Commands at least seven days before the annual meeting or convention and shall be presented by the Secretary to the meeting of convention without further formality.

SEC. 115.—Subject to the express provisions herein contained, clauses 94 "A" and 94 "B" of the Companies Act Amendment Act 1917, shall be adopted and read as a part of these Rules and Regulations, in so far as the same can be reasonably held to apply.

ARTICLE XII.

Powers and Rights with Respect to the Holding of Property

SEC. 116.—The real property that may by law be held or acquired by any Local Branch, or Command, shall be held by a Board of Trustees duly appointed for the purpose, whose appointments, rights, powers, duties and remuneration shall in each case be fixed and determined as hereinafter set forth, and who may take, hold, possess and acquire by purchase, lease, exchange, donation, devise, bequeath, endowment or otherwise,

real or immovable property required for the actual use and occupation of the Association, or necessary or requisite for the carrying out of its purposes and objects, and subject to Section 69A of the Companies Act with power to sell, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or alienate such property in any manner whatever.

SEC. 117.—Subject to these Rules and Regulations, Board of Trustees may acquire and take over all existing assets, interests, rights, credits, effects and property, movable and immovable, held and enjoyed by the existing Association, subject to all the obligations and liabilities existing.

SEC. 118.—The real property of each Branch or Command shall, through its Trustees, be liable only for the debts and engagements of such Branch or Command. Neither the Dominion Command nor any Provincial Command shall have any rights in the assets of any Local Branch, or be liable for any of the debts of any such Branch; and no Local Branch shall have any rights in the assets of, or be liable for any of the debts or obligations of the Dominion Command, or any Provincial Command of the Association, or any other Local Branch thereof,

ARTICLE XIII.

Boards of Trustees

SEC. 119.—The Local Branch at its first general meeting shall appoint a Board of Trustees of not less than three nor more than five, each of whom shall be over the age of twenty-one years, for the purpose of

holding, on behalf of the Branch, all or any real property in which the Branch is or may become interested.

SEC. 120.—Upon incorporation of the Association any such property now held by any Branch, or by the Association for any Branch, shall be forthwith conveyed to the proper Trustees, duly appointed under this Article by any such Branch or Command of the Association.

SEC. 121.—The remuneration of the Trustees shall be fixed by the general meeting of the Branch, and all charges, expenses and outlays whatsoever, incurred by them in the execution and maintenance of the Trust shall be paid to the Trustees by the Branch upon demand, and the Trustees shall, at the expense of the Branch, have the right to engage all necessary and proper solicitors and agents for all trust purposes at all times.

SEC. 122.—In case any Trustee shall die or resign from the trust, or become unfit or incapable of acting, the Branch shall forthwith appoint his successor who upon appointment shall have all the duties and powers of the Trustee whose place be takes upon the Board.

SEC. 123.—All lands held by the Trustees shall be so held upon such terms and conditions as the Local Branch shall determine. The lands may be insured, leased, mortgaged and sold as the Local Branch only may direct, and the Trustees shall in all respects conform to any and all rules and regulations passed by the Local Branch governing the holding of said lands, but otherwise, and in default of any such rules, the Trustees shall hold and manage the same in all respects in the best interests of the Local Branch of the Association.

SEC. 124.—Trustees shall be liable only to account for such moneys as they may actually receive, notwith-standing the signature of any receipt for the sake of conformity, and shall not be responsible otherwise for any deficiency, and they shall be responsible only for their own personal acts and omissions, and not for those of any banker, solicitor, or any agent of any kind.

FORM "A"

Transfer Card
To any Branch of the G.W.V.A This is to certify that the bearer hereof, Comrade
whose name is written on the margin of this card, in his own handwriting, is a member in good standing of the
branch, and is entitled to all rights and privileges under our jurisdiction.
We recommend him to the comradeship of all members of the association on this card.
This card expires on theday of
Given under our hands and the seal of the branch, this

hi of br OU

of

19 rer

thi

FORM "B"

Travelling Card

IO ANY	DRANCH	OF TH	E G.V	V. V.A.		

This is to certify that the bearer hereof, Comrade
whose name is written on the margin of this card, in
his own handwriting, is a member in good standing
of the
branch, and is entitled to all rights and privileges under
our jurisdiction.
We recommend him to the comradeship of all members
of the association on this card.
This card expires on the day of
191, and is null and void after that date unless
renewed.
Given under our hands and the seal of the branch,
thisday of191

THE MORTIMER CO. LIMITED

OTTAWA BRANCH G. W. V. A. CLUB RULES.

The following rules are necessary if the Club is to be properly conducted. Obedience to these rules is required of all, and the assistance of all members in their enforcement is requested.

SECTION I.

General Rules.

- 1.—Non-Members may be introduced after they have signed the visitors' book, but no non-member shall be permitted to visit the Club more than twice in any month. (This rule shall not apply to visiting members of other branches, nor to social functions conducted by the Association).
- 2.—Cigarette butts, burnt matches, empty cigarette packages, ashes and similar refuse shall be deposited only in receptacles provided for that purpose.
- 3.—Members will refrain from resting their feet on any article of furniture belonging to the Club.
- 4.—Members must not use profane or improper language on or about the Club premises.
 - 5.—Gambling on or about the Club premises is strictly forbidden. (This rule will be rigidly enforced).
- 6.—Cards shall be played only in the room set apart for that purpose.
 - 7 —Chips or similar stakes must not be used in any card game.

SECTION II.

Office Rules.

1.—Members are permitted to enter the offices of the Club only on business, and must not remain longer than such business may require.

SECTION III.

Billiards and Pool.

1.—The billiard table may be rented only for one game and if other members are waiting it must be given up at the expiration of forty minutes whether the game is finished or not. (For the purpose of this rule a game of billiards shall consist of one hundred points.

- 2.—A pool table may be rented for a half-hour only. If no other members are waiting at the expiration of this period, it may be rented for a further period of half an hour.
- 3.—No member shall play at any table until he has ascertained that one of the players has secured a check from the steward.
- 4.—Members wishing to play billiards must place their names on the board, and no member whose name is not on the board shall be considered as having any claim on the table.
- 5.—Members are prohibited from placing their weight on the pool or billiard tables by removing both feet from the floor.

SECTION IV.

Cantsen.

- 1.—Members not in the employ of the Association are not permitted inside of the canteen bar.
 - 2.—Credit will not be extended to any member.
 - 3.—Visitors are not permitted to spend money in the Club.

SECTION V.

Steward's Quarters.

1.—Members are only permitted in the portions of the Club set apart for their use, and are prohibited from entering other parts of the building.

SECTION VI.

Library.

- 1.—Books must not be removed from the Club premises, except on application to the Steward or Librarian, when appointed.
- 2.—Books removed from the library to any other part of the building must be replaced.

Any members breaking any of the foregoing rules shall be liable to suspension from all privileges of the Club until such time as his case has been investigated.